
 

 

INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2009 

8150 BARBARA AVENUE 
7:30 P.M. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. ROLL CALL 
3. PRESENTATIONS: 
4.  CONSENT AGENDA – All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and have been made available  
  to the City Council at least two days prior to the meeting; the items will be enacted in one motion.  There will be no  
  separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be  
  removed from this Agenda and considered in normal sequence.       

A. Minutes – October 26, 2009 Regular Council Meeting             

B.   Resolution Approving Disbursements for Period Ending November 4, 2009      

C.  Final Pay Voucher for National Guard Gymnasium Floor Replacement      

D. Change Order No. 1 and Pay Voucher No. 2 for City Project No. 2008-22, Bohrer  
 Pond Shoreland Protection Project            

E.  Change Order No. 1 and Pay Voucher No. 3 for City Project No. 2007-17, Clark Road  
 Extension Improvements             

F.  Pay Voucher No. 3 for City Project No. 2008-09F, Salem Hills Farm Street  
 Reconstruction/Mill and Overlay            

G.  Pay Voucher No. 5 – City Project No. 2008-18, Public Safety Addition/City Hall Ren.    

H.  Resolution Authorizing the City of Inver Grove Heights to Enter into Agreement No.  
 92316 for Railroad Crossing Signals with Mn/DOT and the Union Pacific Railroad  
 Company                

I.   Consider Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement with SRF Consulting  
 Group, Inc. for School Zone Safety Study           

J.  Approve Resolution that Provides for the Sale of Unclaimed Property to a Local  
 Non-Profit Organization             

K.  Approve Funding Source for Salem Hills Trail          

L.   Approve Disc Golf Course Hole Re-Alignment         

M.  Approve Employee Vehicle Use Policy           

N.  Approve Resolution Authorizing Execution of Grant Programs offered through  
Minnesota State Patrol             

 



O.  Accept Donation to the Inver Grove Heights Police Department from Residential  
Mortgage Group              

P. Approve Agreement for Periodic Construction Observation Services for Roofing and  
 related Sheet Metal Services for the Public Safety Addition       

Q. Authorize Advertisement of RFP for a Technology Systems Consultant for the Proposed  
 Public Safety Addition/City Hall Renovation           

R. Concord Hills Development Agreement Amendment         

S. Authorize Advertisement of Bids for Fire Truck          

T.  Approve 2010 Meeting Schedule for Advisory Commissions        

U.  Schedule Public Hearing – Amendment to Fees for 2010        

V.  Schedule Public Hearing – 2010 Liquor License Renewals         

W. Schedule Special Council Meeting           

X.  Consider 2010 Proposed Convention and Visitors Bureau Budget       

Y.  Approve Fire Relief Association Worksheets          

Z.  Personnel Actions              

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT – Public comment provides an opportunity for the public to address the Council on items  
 that are not on the Agenda.  Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person.  

6. ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS: 

A. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Kladek, Inc. Liquor License Violation      

B. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS;  Assessment Hearing for 2009 Nuisance Abatement    

7. REGULAR AGENDA:  

ADMINISTRATION:  

A.  CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider First Reading of Electric Franchise  
Ordinance with Dakota Electric                 

B. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider Second Reading of Electric and Gas Franchise  
Ordinances with Xcel Energy (NSP)                 

C.  CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider Second Reading of an Ordinance relating to Alcohol  
Server Training Requirements                

D. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider Second Reading of an Ordinance regulating the 
 Number and Frequency of Garage Sales              

 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 

E. JOYCE JOHNSON; Consider Resolution and Two Encroachment Agreements relating to  
 a Conditional Use Permit to increase the size of a non-conforming structure by 14%  
 of the original size for property located at 7432 Cloman Way           
 

F. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS;  Consider the Third Reading of a  
 Zoning Code Amendment relating to the maintenance and repair of Non-Conforming  
 uses and structures                

G. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider Resolution relating to a Comprehensive  
Plan Amendment for the modification of proposed trails shown on the Parks, Trails and Open  
Space Plan in the Parks and Recreation chapter of the 2030 Comprehensive Plan        

H.  CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider renewal of permits for advertising benches  
(bus benches) in the City of Inver Grove Heights         

PUBLIC WORKS:  

I.   CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider Resolution Establishing Utility Rates for  
 2010               

J.   CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider Change Order No. 5 and Pay Voucher No. 14  
 for City Project No. 2003-15, Northwest Area Trunk Improvements      

K.  CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider Resolution Approving Addendum No. 5 for  
 Engineering and Construction Services Agreement with Bolton & Menk, Inc. for City  
     Project No. 2003-15 – Northwest Area Trunk Utility Improvements       

ADMINISTRATION CONT. 

L.  CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider First Reading of an Ordinance Amending City  
Code Title 3, Chapter 4, Sections 3-4-2-2 and 3-4-2-3 and Title 10, Chapter 3,  
Section 10-3-8 Adjusting Development Fees for 2010         

8. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

9. ADJOURN 



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
MONDAY, OCTOBER 26, 2009 - 8150 BARBARA AVENUE 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  The City Council of Inver Grove Heights met in regular session on 
Monday, October 26, 2009, in the City Council Chambers.  Mayor Tourville called the meeting to order at 
7:30 p.m. Present were Council members Grannis, Klein, Madden, and Piekarski Krech; City Administrator 
Lynch, Assistant City Administrator Teppen, City Attorney Kuntz, City Engineer Kaldunski, Parks &  
Recreation Director Carlson, Community Development Director Link and Deputy Clerk Rheaume.   

3. PRESENTATIONS:     

4. CONSENT AGENDA:   

Councilmember Grannis removed Item 4H, Resolution Accepting the Proposal of American Engineering 
Testing for Geotechnical Testing Services on Upper 55th St. for the 2010 Pavement Management 
Program, Item 4I, Resolution Accepting the Proposal of Braun Intertec for Geotechnical Testing Services 
on College Trail and Blaine Avenue for the 2010 Pavement Management Program, and item 4K, Consider  
Vibration Monitoring at 4055 59th Street, from the Consent Agenda.  

A. Minutes – October 12, 2009 Regular Council Meeting 

B. Resolution No. 09-197 Approving Disbursements for Period Ending October 21, 2009 

C. Resolution No. 09-198 Certifying Delinquent Utility Bills 

D. Final Compensating Change Order No. 2, Final Pay Voucher No. 5, Engineer’s Report of Final 
Acceptance, and Resolution No. 09-199 Accepting Work for City Project No. 2008-10 – T.H. 52  

 East Frontage Road Ravine Storm Water Pond Improvements 

E.   Final Compensating Change Order No. 2, Final Pay Voucher No. 2, Engineer’s Report of Final 
Acceptance, and Resolution No. 09-200 Accepting Work for City Project No. 2008-13 –  

 Courthouse Boulevard Court Street Improvements  

F. Pay Voucher No. 4 - City Project No. 2009-09D, South Grove Urban Street Reconstruction Area 4 

G. Resolution No. 09-201 Awarding Contract for 2009 Large Storm Sewer Televising Program  

J. Approve Installation of Overhead Street Light at Cahill Avenue/Inver Grove Trail Intersection 

L. Personnel Actions 

Motion by Madden, second by Klein, to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried. 

H. Consider accepting the proposal of American Engineering Testing for Geotechnical  
 Testing Services on Upper 55th St. for the 2010 Pavement Management Program 

Councilmember Grannis stated the service agreement with American Engineering Testing needed to be  
corrected to allow the City to recover attorney’s fees that may be incurred in the event of litigation.  

Motion by Klein, second by Madden, to adopt Resolution No. 09-202 accepting the proposal of 
American Engineering Testing for Geotechnical Testing Services on Upper 55th St. for the 2010  
Pavement Management Program with the correction to the service agreement regarding recovery  
of attorney’s fees. 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried. 

 

 

 



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING – October 26, 2009  PAGE 2 

I. Consider Accepting the Proposal of Braun Intertec for Geotechnical Testing  
Services on College Trail and Blaine Avenue for the 2010 Pavement Management Program 

Councilmember Grannis stated he would not vote in favor of contracting with Braun Intertec due to an  
issue that occurred with soil testing during a previous project. 

Motion by Madden, second by Klein, to approve Resolution No. 09-203 Accepting the Proposal of 
Braun Intertec for Geotechnical Testing Services on College Trail and Blaine Avenue for the 2010  
Pavement Management Program 

Ayes: 4 
Nays: 1 (Grannis) Motion carried. 

K. Consider Vibration Monitoring at 4055 59th Street 

Councilmember Grannis reiterated he would not be in favor of hiring Braun Intertec and asked that an  
addendum be added to the contract for reclamation of attorney’s fees should litigation be necessary. 

Motion by Madden, second by Klein, to approve vibration monitoring at 4055 59th Street with an  
addendum for reclamation of attorney’s fees 

Ayes: 4 
Nays: 1 (Grannis)  Motion carried. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS:   

A.  CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Assessment Hearing for City Project No. 2008-09D, Urban Street    
Reconstruction – South Grove Area 3    

Tom Kaldunski, City Engineer, explained the components of the project included: mill and overlay 
improvements, street reconstruction with concrete curb and gutter, concrete sidewalk, storm sewer, water 
main, grading, landscaping, restoration and appurtenances.  He stated the total cost of the project was 
$3,669,953.15.  He noted 431 properties were proposed to be assessed, and explained the reconstruction 
area consisted of 237 single-family residential lots, three (3) partial residential lots, one (1) business, one 
(1) school property, nine (9) church properties, and one (1) City property.  He added the mill and overlay 
area consisted of 154 townhomes/condos, nine (9) businesses, one (1) apartment property, and two (2) 
school properties.  He noted that there were three (3) single-family residential lots on Cahill Avenue 
proposed to be assessed for storm sewer only, and 250 properties in the reconstruction area proposed to  
be assessed for storm sewer work as well.     

Mr. Kaldunski explained the proposed assessment role was based on Metzen Appraisals’ recommended 
cap of $4,000 for street reconstruction and $2,000 for mill and overlay.  He noted that all mill and overlay 
assessments, per the City’s assessment policy, were less than the recommended $2,000 cap.  He 
explained if cumulative total assessment for parcels in the project area exceeded $4,000 for 
reconstruction, the excess amount would be funded via the Pavement Management Fund.  He further 
explained if the parcel was already assessed for storm water improvements part of City Project 2001-02 or 
participated in the driveway credit program, that amount would be subtracted from $4,000 to arrive at the 
final assessment amount for the current project.  He noted assessments for the half-lot parcels were pro-
rated based on a front footage calculation.  He stated the total amount proposed to be specially assessed 
is $1,876,302.29 if City policy were to be followed and $1,174,087.69 if the assessments were capped as 
per the recommendations of the analysis completed by Metzen Appraisals.  He reviewed the proposed 
assessment terms of ten (10) years at an interest rate of six (6) percent for street reconstruction or storm 
sewer costs, five (5) years at an interest rate of six (6) percent for mill and overlay, and fifteen  
(15) years at an interest rate of six (6) percent for the church property.         

Mr. Kaldunksi reviewed the topics discussed at an informational meeting held on September 30th.  He 
stated 20 residents were in attendance and various issues were discussed including: requested repairs, 
assessments where owners had one full lot and one partial lot, and several parcels that should not be  



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING – October 26, 2009  PAGE 3 

assessed because they were road right-of-way.   

Motion by Klein, second by Madden, to receive signed correspondence 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried. 

Councilmember Klein asked Mr. Kuntz to review the senior citizen deferment policy.   

Mr. Kuntz said within the notice sent to the property owners there is reference to a city council policy of  
deferment.     

Barbara Heinzer, 6971 Clayton Avenue, stated she is one of the property owners proposed to be 
assessed for one full lot, plus one half lot, for a total assessment of $6,000.  She asked that the Council 
make an exception and assess her similar to what her neighbor was proposed to be assessed for the  
same amount of property.   

Councilmember Piekarski Krech questioned why Ms. Heinzer did not combine the lot into one parcel.   

Ms. Heinzer explained the lot is unbuildable and was purchased as tax delinquent property.   

Mayor Tourville questioned how many half lots were proposed to be assessed.  

Mr. Kaldunski responded two property owners were proposed to be assessed for one full lot and for one 
half lot, and a third situation in which a property owner owns one full lot and a separate party owns the half  
lot.  

Councilmember Klein clarified that in the third situation the half lot is owned by a separate entity that would 
be assessed only for the half lot.  He confirmed that staff did not receive any assessment objections  
regarding the parcel.   

Don Roberts, 7312 Clayton Avenue East, questioned the interest rate for the assessment to the Mt. Bethel 
church property.  He stated the interest rate should be 5.0 or 5.5%.    He asked that the same terms that  
were given to St. Patrick’s church for a previous project be given to Mt. Bethel.   

Mayor Tourville explained the interest rate is uniform for all parcels in the project area.   

Councilmember Klein clarified that St. Patrick’s church was given a longer term at the same interest rate  
as everyone else that was assessed for the project.  

Mr. Kaldunski responded that St. Patrick’s received a fifteen (15) year term at an interest rate equal to  
what the Council imposed on every other property owner assessed. 

Doug Smith, 6928 Cahill Avenue, asked the Council to consider a reduction to his proposed assessment.  
He stated his property does not abut any of the affected streets in the project area and does not feel the 
amount he is proposed to be assessed is equal to the benefit his property received.  He explained the 
benefit is supposed to be for drainage and his property does not contribute runoff to the improved  
drainage area.   

Mayor Tourville asked if Mr. Smith’s property had been assessed for City Project 2001-02.   

Mr. Kaldunski stated the property was not assessed for City Project 2001-02 and explained the proposed  
assessment is for the storm sewer improvements because the property is located in the drainage area.    

James Holzemer, 6948 Cahill Avenue, stated he was assessed for storm sewer project on Cahill Avenue 
in 1972.  He commented that the proposed assessment amount was too high and did not warrant the  
benefit to his property.   

Mayor Tourville noted that the infrastructure needs to be updated every 20-25 years.   

Councilmember Klein asked if Mr. Holzemer was being assessed for his whole lot.   

Mr. Kaldunski stated he was being assessed for the portion of the lot that drains towards 69th Street.   

Mr. Holzemer asked the Council to consider reducing his proposed assessment.   



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING – October 26, 2009  PAGE 4 

Mayor Tourville noted that this is one of the lowest caps the City has ever considered due to declining  
property values and the state of the economy.   

Mr. Kaldunski clarified the Holzemer and Smith properties were proposed to be assessed the full amount  
for city drainage.  He noted the Council could consider applying a cap to these two situations.  

Howie Pince, 6941 Casper Avenue, spoke in favor of the assessment cap and asked that a problem with  
his sprinkler system is addressed.   

Warren Larson, 6931 Clayton Avenue East, asked for clarification regarding the proposed assessment  
cap, the accrual of interest for the senior citizen deferment program, and the procedure for paying the  
assessment.   

Mayor Tourville explained that appraisals were done in the neighborhood and it was found that a $4,000  
assessment could be sustained by the properties in the reconstruction area.  He stated the proposed  
interest rate of 6% would accrue annually if the assessment was deferred.   

Mr. Kaldunski explained that once the Council adopts a final assessment role, an invoice would be sent 
out to property owners indicating the final assessment amount.   He noted the property owner would have  
30 days from the date of the assessment hearing to pay without interest.   

Mr. Larson asked how much interest would accrue if the assessment was paid within six months.   

Mr. Kuntz stated the interest would be paid off through the end the year in which it was paid.  He stated  
the assessments need to be certified to the county by December 1st.  He clarified that a hardship needed  
to be displayed to participate in the deferral program.  

Doug Ness, 6931 Claude Avenue, asked for clarification on the assessment cap and if any lots West of  
Cahill Avenue were proposed to be assessed.   

Mayor Tourville stated a $4,000 cap is being proposed for single-family residential lots in the  
reconstruction area.   

Mr. Kaldunski stated no properties West of Cahill Avenue were proposed to be assessed.   

Jesse Fillmore, 6801 Cain Avenue, asked what the total amount to be paid by the City would be.   

Mr. Kaldunski stated $1.17 million dollars is proposed to be assessed and the City would pay $2.6 million  
if the cap was imposed.   

Mayor Tourville noted the City allocates money every year as part of the budget process to pay for  
projects. 

Motion by Klein, second by Madden, to close the public hearing 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried. 

Mr. Kuntz confirmed that no assessment objection had been filed for the solely owned half lot.   

Councilmember Piekarski Krech stated she would be willing to reduce the assessments by half for the 
property owners with one lot plus one half-lot.  She explained her concern is setting a precedent for not  
assessing unbuildable lots that could be combined into one parcel and have not been.   

Mayor Tourville stated he would support assessing those property owners for one lot because the half lot  
is unbuildable and in an urban area.  He noted he would like an update on the issue with the sprinkler  
system and on the email that objected to the assessment but was not signed by the property owner.   

Motion by Klein, second by Madden, to approve Resolution No. 09-204 adopting the final 
assessment roll with a $4,000 assessment cap for the reconstruction area, a $2,000 assessment 
cap for mill and overlay areas, a 5.5% interest rate, a 10-year term for the reconstruction area, a 5-
year term for mill and overlay areas, a 15-year term for non-government/non-profit parcels, a 



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING – October 26, 2009  PAGE 5 

reduction by ½ to the proposed assessment for the Holzemer (6948 Cahill Ave.) and Smith (6928 
Cahill Ave.) parcels and to consider the identified parcels which have an additional half-lot as one  
lot for City Project No. 2008-09D, Urban Street Reconstruction – South Grove Area 3 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried. 

The City Council took a five-minute recess. 

7. REGULAR AGENDA: 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 

A. WALMART STORES; Consider Resolution Approving a One-Time Hour Extension to Allow the Store  
to Remain Open for 24 Hours on Thanksgiving Day  

Mr. Link explained Walmart Stores submitted a request to allow extended hours of operation on the 
evening of November 26, 2009 and remain open for 24 hours into the morning of Friday, November 27th.  
He stated the manager of the store cited avoidance of long lines and possibility of injuries as reasons for 
the extended hours request.  He noted the parking lot lights would remain on at full intensity for the same 
period.  He explained Walmart currently has restrictions on its hours of operation and the hours the 
parking lot lighting remains on.  He stated the only exception to the hours of operation has been to allow 
the store to open at 5:00 a.m. on the Friday after Thanksgiving.  He explained Planning staff would 
support the request for the one-time extension provided there were no neighborhood concerns that were  
unable to be addressed.  

Dave Gall, 9270 Cheney Trail, expressed concerns regarding noise and light during the extended hours of 
operation.  He opined that Walmart has not followed the guidelines and restrictions that were put in place 
as conditions of approval and commented that the police have not enforced violations he has personally 
reported.  He commented that the original agreement was that the store would be open daily from 7:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. and that agreement was already amended to allow the store to open at 5:00 a.m. on 
the Friday after Thanksgiving.  He asked that the Council not approve further amendments to the original  
agreement.   

Jim Elsenpeter, Walmart Store Manager, stated he would check on measures that could be taken to 
address the lighting concerns.  He stated that the request stems from an attempt to avoid safety issues  
that were demonstrated last year both from a consumer and employee standpoint.   

Ed Gunter, 6671 Concord Boulevard, commented that the store should not be open for 24 hours on a  
holiday and felt it was unfair to ask employees to work the extended hours.   

Mayor Tourville responded that the City has no control over employee schedules or on which holidays the  
store is or is not open.  He stated the City can only control the hours of operation. 

Councilmember Madden stated that he would not support the one-time extension because the conditions  
of approval that were agreed upon as part of the original request should be upheld.  He commented that 
the restrictions were put in place for a reason.  He stated that the amendment to the original agreement to  
allow the store to open at 5:00 a.m. the Friday after Thanksgiving was sufficient.    

Frank Rauschnot, 6840 Dixie Avenue, stated that businesses need to have as many opportunities to  
succeed as possible and do not need further restraints given the state of the economy. 

Councilmember Grannis stated he agrees that the terms of the original agreement should be upheld.   

Councilmember Klein stated the one-time extension should be granted because it would alleviate the 
safety issues and would attract more consumers to the both the store and the City on the biggest shopping  
day of the year.  

Motion by Grannis, second by Piekarski Krech, to adopt Resolution No. 09-205 denying the request  
for a one-time hour extension on Thanksgiving Day 

Ayes: 3 (Grannis, Madden, Piekarski Krech) 



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING – October 26, 2009  PAGE 6 

Nays: 2 (Klein, Tourville)  Motion carried. 

B. MIKE PONE; Consider Resolution regarding a Variance to Construct a Fence within the Bluffline  
Setback along the Mississippi River Critical Area for property located at 8336 River Road 

Mr. Link explained the request is to construct a fence that would encroach within the bluffline setback.  He 
stated the property is located in the Critical Area Overlay District of the Mississippi River and the bluffline 
setback for all structures is 100 feet.  He noted the fence is proposed to be constructed 10 feet from the 
bluffline.   He stated the hardship is the configuration of the lot.  He explained it would not be possible to 
construct a fence that would meet the setback requirements because the distance from the bluffline to the 
western property line is only 75 feet.  He added the applicant proposed installation of the fence to protect 
his family from the hazardous steep slope from the bluffline to the river.  He explained the applicant would 
not be removing any additional trees and the fence would be visually inconspicuous from the river.  He 
stated both Planning staff and the Planning Commission recommended approval of the request.  He noted  
the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources was contacted and did not oppose the request. 

Councilmember Piekarski Krech confirmed that there would be no damage to the bluff.   

Motion by Klein, second by Madden, to adopt Resolution No. 09-206 approving a Variance to 
construct a fence within the bluffline setback along the Mississippi River Critical Area for property  
located at 8336 River Road 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried.  

C. DEBRA WYLIE; Consider Resolution regarding a Conditional Use Permit to exceed the maximum  
impervious coverage for property located at 7036 Dawn Way  

Mr. Link stated the applicant proposed construction of a pool in the rear yard that would add 610 square 
feet of impervious surface to the lot, for a total of 39.6%.  He noted the lot is approximately 10,777 square 
feet in size, 10% smaller than the minimum lot size requirements for properties in the R-1C zoning district.  
He explained that a conditional use permit may be obtained to exceed the 25% impervious coverage 
requirements for lots that do not meet the minimum size requirements in the R-1 district.  He stated the 
pool would not have a negative impact on the neighbors and the proposal meets all setback requirements.  
He stated Planning staff and the Planning Commission recommended approval of the request with 
fourteen conditions.  He noted the applicant has been made aware of the impervious surface conditional  
use criteria and has agreed to comply with the storm water treatment conditions.   

Councilmember Madden questioned if the storm water plan was approved by the engineering department.    

Mr. Link responded that the details of the plan have yet to be worked out, but are required to be approved  
by the City Engineering department prior to ground disturbance or installation of the pool.    

Councilmember Madden verified that the applicant agreed with the conditions of approval.   

Motion by Madden, second by Klein, to adopt Resolution No. 09-207 approving a Conditional Use  
Permit to exceed the maximum impervious coverage for property located at 7036 Dawn Way with  
the conditions recommended by Planning staff 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried. 

D. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider the Second Reading of a Zoning Code Amendment  
relating to the Maintenance and Repair of Non-Conforming Uses and Structures 

Mr. Link stated the City Code should be amended to be consistent with state statutes.  He explained the 
amended language addresses improvements and changes to existing nonconforming uses and structures. 
He noted the amendment would allow property owners of nonconforming uses and structures more rights  
and flexibility than what is currently allowed by code.   



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING – October 26, 2009  PAGE 7 

Frank Rauschnot, 6840 Dixie Avenue, commented that nonconforming uses cost tax payers money and 
said the City should look at ways to bring the property into compliance rather than continuing to allow  
nonconforming uses.   

Motion by Madden, second by Grannis, to approve the second reading of a Zoning Code  
Amendment relating to the maintenance and repair of Non-Conforming Uses and Structures 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried. 

E. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider the following actions for property along 66th Street, East  
of Concord Boulevard, adjacent to the swing bridge: 

  i) Resolution relating to a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the land  
   use designation of the property from Mixed Use to Public Park/Open Space 

  ii) An Ordinance Amendment relating to a Rezoning of the property from I-1, Limited  
   Industry to P, Institutional 

Mr. Link stated the property is currently zoned I-1, Limited Industry and guided Mixed Use.  He explained a 
change to a Public Park/Open Space designation and rezoning to Park would be consistent with the plan 
for the future park area associated with the redevelopment of the bridge.  He note the Planning 
Commission reviewed the capital expenditure of funds for the bridge construction and found it to be  
consistent with the comprehensive plan.   

Councilmember Piekarski Krech referred to the aerial photo and asked if the property line depicted was  
correct.   

Mr. Link responded in the affirmative.   

Motion by Piekarski Krech, second by Madden, to adopt Resolution No. 09-208 approving a 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the land use designation of the property from Mixed 
Use to Public Park/Open Space and to adopt Ordinance 1197 approving a rezoning of the property  
from I-1, Limited Industry to P, Institutional 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried. 

ADMINISTRATION: 

F. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider First Reading of an Ordinance relating to Alcohol  
Server Training Requirements  

Mr. Kuntz explained the ordinance would require every employee who serves or sells alcoholic beverages 
at a licensed liquor establishment within the City to successfully complete an alcohol server training 
course.  He noted temporary licensees and licensed caterers would be exempt from the training 
requirement.  He stated the requirement would become effective July 1, 2010.  He explained that course 
requirements from State Statute were used as the standard for the type of courses required by the 
ordinance.  He reviewed two courses that would meet the requirement for an approved program and 
referenced several similar courses that other cities have approved, including on-line programs that are 
readily accessible.  He clarified that the ordinance currently requires the training be renewed on a twelve-
month interval. He explained the license holder would be responsible for ensuring that every employee  
completed training and would also need to have evidence of training available upon request by City staff.     

Councilmember Madden opined that there should be a reason or an occurrence that triggers the 
requirement for employees to receive the training.  He stated he would not have a problem with requiring 
new licensees to undergo training.  He explained he could not support putting an additional financial  
burden on licensees that have never had a problem.   

Councilmember Piekarski Krech stated that people should be trained before they start serving or selling 
alcohol.  She added she would be in favor or requiring refresher courses, but felt the 12 month interval  



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING – October 26, 2009  PAGE 8 

may be onerous.   

Councilmember Madden commented that the City already has penalties established for licensees that do  
not comply with the law.     

Mayor Tourville stated that a number of other cities also make the training a requirement and noted that 
most license holders already have their employees trained for insurance purposes.  He commented that  
the training may not need to be renewed annually.   

Councilmember Klein stated that the requirements were intrusive on business owners and commented the  
penalties already in place for violations were sufficient.   

Mayor Tourville stated that the City is trying to take a proactive approach rather than always being  
reactive. 

Ed Gunther, 6671 Concord Blvd., stated he has spoken to a number of business owners about the training 
requirements and found that most already have their employees trained to maintain their liability 
insurance.  He commented that there was concern regarding the requirement that the employee receive  
training before they can work.    

Councilmember Piekarski Krech clarified that the employee can work, but cannot serve or sell alcohol until  
the training is completed.  She noted that there are many on-line courses available at a reasonable cost. 

Councilmember Grannis stated he is in favor of the ordinance and asked that staff send the draft 
ordinance to the Chamber of Commerce and the liquor license holders in the City for feedback prior to the  
second reading.   

Councilmember Madden agreed that he would like feedback from the business owners.  He stated if they  
did not have a problem with the ordinance he would be in favor of it. 

Mr. Kuntz stated that he would revise the ordinance to include a 12, 24 or 36 month interval for refresher  
training. 

Motion by Piekarski Krech, second by Grannis, to approve the first reading of an ordinance 
relating to alcohol server training requirements with a renewal period range of 12, 24 or 36 months 
and to direct staff to solicit feedback from all liquor license holders regarding the proposed  
training requirements 

Ayes: 4 
Nays: 1 (Klein) Motion carried. 

G. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider Resolution adopting an Alcohol Sales Compliance  
Check Policy 

Mr. Kuntz stated the proposed policy addresses the City’s course of action in the event of an alcohol 
compliance check failure.  He explained the policy would apply to all establishments licensed by the City 
that serve or sell alcoholic beverages, except for holders of a temporary license or caterer’s permit.  He 
stated the police department will conduct compliance checks at least once per year on all establishments 
subject to the proposed policy to ensure alcohol is not being sold to minors.  He explained the compliance 
checks are meant to be educational and remedial in nature, and are also done to demonstrate the City’s 
objective of enforcement via visibility and follow-up.  He stated if a server or sales person serves or sells 
an alcoholic beverage to an underage person during a compliance check the matter concerning the server 
or sales person would be referred for prosecution and a formal complaint would be filed.  He added that 
the establishment’s owner would be informed of the infraction and required to meet with the police 
department to review the protocols and procedures in place at the establishment related to the sale of 
alcohol.  He noted the police department would also determine if all servers had received the required 
alcohol server training, should the proposed ordinance be approved.  He explained that the first or second 
compliance check failure within a thirty month period where the establishment is under the same 
ownership would not be referred to the Council for imposition of a civil penalty against the owner of the 
establishment.  He further explained that the third and any subsequent infraction relating to either a 



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING – October 26, 2009  PAGE 9 

compliance check failure or a violation of any State Statute or City Code provision related to the sale of 
alcohol to an underage person within any thirty month period under the same ownership may be referred 
to the City Attorney’s office for potential criminal charges and will be referred to the City Council for  
potential imposition of a civil penalty.        

Councilmember Klein commented that he would like the police department to consider using people for  
compliance checks that may appear to be underage but in actuality are not. 

Mayor Tourville noted that the police department utilizes people that are underage as well as those that  
are legal drinking age. 

Motion by Madden, second by Piekarski Krech, to adopt Resolution No. 09-209 approving an  
Alcohol Sales Compliance Check Policy 

Ayes: 4 
Nays: 1 (Klein) Motion carried. 

H. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider First Reading of an Ordinance Regulating the Number  
and Frequency of Garage Sales 

Ms. Teppen stated that the City Council asked staff to prepare an ordinance that would regulate the 
number and frequency of garage sales.  She explained that the Council reviewed similar ordinances from 
surrounding communities and asked that specific language from each be incorporated into a draft 
ordinance.  She noted that Council further directed that there be a penalty associated with a violation of 
the proposed ordinance.  She stated the City Attorney suggested the Council consider specific language  
for these regulations that would make a violation a petty misdemeanor.     

Councilmember Grannis suggested that the language recognize a violation as a misdemeanor because a  
judge could rule to reduce the violation to that of a petty misdemeanor.   

Councilmember Madden commented that recognition of a violation of a petty misdemeanor was sufficient. 

Mayor Tourville suggested that the penalty remain a petty misdemeanor for now and asked that 
Councilmember Grannis bring information for the Council at the second reading of why it may be  
beneficial for the City to recognize a violation as a misdemeanor. 

Councilmember Klein questioned how staff would be able to discern between a garage sale and a home  
business.   

Mr. Kuntz stated that the zoning administrator  

Mayor Tourville stated complaints were received regarding people having garage sales every weekend.  
He suggested that language be added to make an exception for participation in the city-wide  
garage sale during Inver Grove Heights Days.   

Motion by Madden, second by Tourville, to approve the first reading of an ordinance regulating the 
number and frequency of garage sales with a provision added to make an exception for  
participation in the city-wide garage sale during Inver Grove Heights Days. 

Ayes: 4 
Nays: 1 (Piekarski Krech) Motion carried. 

I. CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS; Consider First Reading of Electric and Gas Franchise  
Ordinances with Xcel Energy (NSP) 

Mr. Kuntz explained that the current Gas and Electric Franchises with Xcel Energy expire at the end of 
2009.  He stated under state law public utility entities have a right to utilize city streets with certain 
restrictions.  He explained in April of 2009, the Administration and Public Works departments began 
negotiations with Xcel Energy for new franchise agreements.  He noted the new agreements would be in  
effect for 20 years and would not restrict the City from passing ordinances relating to right-of-way.   

Councilmember Piekarski Krech asked if there were any significant changes to the new franchise  



INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MEETING – October 26, 2009  PAGE 10 

agreements.   

Mr. Lynch responded that the most significant change is the ability of the City to establish a franchise fee.   

Councilmember Klein asked what the impact of a franchise fee would be on the consumers in Inver Grove  
Heights.   

Collette Jurek, Xcel Energy, stated that a flat fee would be imposed on the customer’s monthly bill.    

Councilmember Grannis questioned which areas of the City were served by Xcel Energy.   

Ms. Jurek stated she did not have a territory map available.  She noted areas of services are set by the  
public utilities commission.   

Councilmember Grannis questioned the language in the agreement relating to the boundaries of service 
and stated the way it is written it appears that Xcel Energy is being granted a franchise for the entire City  
even though they only provide service to part of the City.   

Mr. Kuntz explained that the boundaries can change per the decision of the public utilities commission. 

Councilmember Piekarski Krech pointed out that the lines for Xcel Energy and Dakota Electric coexist and  
each entity needs to be allowed to run their lines throughout the entire City.   

Ms. Jurek noted that the natural gas lines are a non-regulated entity; therefore it is a competitive market. 

Motion by Klein, second by Madden, to approve First Reading of Electric and Gas Franchise  
Ordinances with Xcel Energy (NSP) 

Ayes: 5 
Nays: 0 Motion carried. 

8. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS:     

Councilmember Klein pointed out that permanent lights are being installed in the roundabout. 

Councilmember Madden commented that new roundabouts in Inver Grove Heights and West St. Paul  
were completed and stated that they work well and have significantly improved the intersections.   

Mr. Lynch announced that a meeting was scheduled for Thursday, October 29th at 6:30 p.m. in the Inver 
Grove Heights Middle School cafeteria to discuss the pedestrian safety study.  He also announced a storm 
water utility informational meeting was scheduled for November 19th at 6:30 p.m. in Community Room one  
at the VMCC.   

Mayor Tourville asked if there were any concerns or updates regarding outstanding construction projects.   

Mr. Kaldunski provided an update on each project that was still going on. 

9. ADJOURN:  Motion by Piekarski Krech, second by Klein, to adjourn.  The meeting was adjourned by a 
unanimous vote at 10:35 p.m. 



AGENDA ITEM _____4B_____ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 

Item Type: Consent  None 

Contact: Cathy Shea   651-450-2521 X Amount included in current budget 

Prepared by: Cathy Shea Asst. Finance Director  Budget amendment requested 

Reviewed by: N/A  FTE included in current complement 

   New FTE requested – N/A 

   Other 

 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED 

 
Approve the attached resolution approving disbursements for the period of October 22, 2009 to 
November 4, 2009. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 

Shown below is a listing of the disbursements for the various funds for the period ending 
November 4, 2009.  The detail of these disbursements is attached to this memo. 
 
 

General & Special Reveune $170,104.25

Debt Service & Capital Projects 1,527,418.62

Enterprise & Internal Service 309,537.99

Escrows 4,033.86

Grand Total for All Funds $2,011,094.72

 
 
 

If you have any questions about any of the disbursements on the list, please call Vickie Gray, 
Accounting Technician at 651-450-2515 or Cathy Shea, Asst. Finance Director at 651-450-
2521.  
 
Attached to this summary for your action is a resolution approving the disbursements for the 
period October 22, 2009 to November 4, 2009 and the listing of disbursements requested for 
approval. 
 



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
 
 
 
 
 

DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING DISBURSEMENTS FOR THE 
PERIOD ENDING NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

 
 WHEREAS, a list of disbursements for the period ending November 4, 2009 was 

presented to the City Council for approval; 
 
               NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF INVER GROVE 
HEIGHTS:  that payment of the list of disbursements of the following funds is approved: 

 
 General & Special Revenue $    170,104.25 
 Debt Service & Capital Projects      1,527,418.62 
 Enterprise & Internal Service     309,537.99 
 Escrow        4,033.86 
 
 Grand Total for All Funds $ 2,011,094.72 
 
 
 Adopted by the City Council of Inver Grove Heights this 9th day of November, 2009. 
 
Ayes: 
 
Nays:         

___________________________ 
        George Tourville, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Melissa Rheaume, Deputy City Clerk 

 
 
 







































































































































AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION THAT PROVIDES FOR THE SALE OF UNCLAIMED PROPERTY 
TO A LOCAL NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 

Item Type: Consent Agenda  None 

Contact: Tracy Petersen-651.450.2588 X Amount included in current budget 

Prepared by: Tracy Petersen, Parks and Rec  Budget amendment requested 

Reviewed by:   FTE included in current complement 

   New FTE requested – N/A 

   Other 

 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED Consider adopting the attached resolution that provides for 
the sale of unclaimed property to a local non-profit community organization; 22 bicycles to the 
Inver Grove Heights Lions Club. 
 
SUMMARY The Inver Grove Heights Lions Club, a local non-profit organization has proposed 
to acquire twenty (22) unclaimed bicycles from the City and have them refurbished by Mountain 
Bike King, 6489 Cahill Avenue, in order that they may be given to local youth during the 
upcoming holiday season. 
 
Section 320 of the City Code provides for the disposition of unclaimed property to local non-
profit community organizations.  The City Code also provides for the review of such requests on 
a case-by-case basis, and for the City Council to determine an appropriate fee for the property 
acquisition.  For the past eight years, the City Council has set the fee at $5.00. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONCLUSIONS: 
Staff recommends the City Council approve the attached resolution providing for the sale of 22 
unclaimed bicycles to the Inver Grove Heights Lions Club for the sum of $5.00 in order that the 
bicycles may be refurbished and distributed to local youth during the upcoming holiday season. 



CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS 
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF UNCLAIMED  

PROPERTY TO LOCAL NON-PROFIT COMMUNITY 
ORGANIZATION – FIXABLE/UNCLAIMED BICYCLES 

TO INVER GROVE HEIGHTS LIONS CLUB 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has amended Section 320 of the City Code providing for 
the disposition of unclaimed property at private sale to local non-profit community organizations, 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Inver Grove Heights Lions Club has expressed interest in acquiring up 
to 22 fixable/unclaimed bicycles in possession of the City, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Lions Club proposes to have the bicycles refurbished and repaired at 

the local Mountain King Bike store, in order that they may be distributed to youth in the 
community during the holiday season. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Inver Grove 

Heights, Minnesota, approves the private sale of 22 fixable/unclaimed bicycles to the Inver 
Grove Heights Lions Club, a local non-profit community organization, for the sum of Five Dollars 
($5.00), pursuant to Section 320 of the City Code, as amended.  

 
 

Adopted by the City Council of Inver Grove Heights this 9th day of November, 2009.  
 

Ayes:   
Nays:   
Abstain:  

  ______________________________ 
      George Tourville, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Melissa Rheaume, City Clerk 
 





































AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
AUTHORIZE ADVERTISEMENT OF RFP FOR TECHNOLOGY PACKAGE FOR THE 
PROPOSED PUBLIC SAFETY ADDITION/CITY HALL RENOVATION 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 
Item Type: Consent  None 
Contact: JTeppen, Asst. City Admin.  Amount included in current budget 
Prepared by:   Budget amendment requested 
Reviewed by:   FTE included in current complement 
   New FTE requested – N/A 
  X Other 
 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED Authorize advertisement of an RFP for a technology 
package for the proposed Public Safety Addition/City Hall Renovation. 
 
 
SUMMARY The technology package will include all technology related items for Phase One 
and Two.  The items are network cabling, premise security and AV/Multimedia. 
 
The cabling portion of the package includes cabling for the entire building Phase One and Two.  
The security portion of the package includes security (access control and IP video surveillance) 
for the entire building Phase One and Two.  The AV portion of the package includes all 
AV/Multimedia related items for the entire building Phase One and Two except for the City 
Council Chambers.  The City Council Chambers will be bid at a later time due to ensure that the 
broadcast equipment will be current and up-to-date with the actual construction timeframe.  This 
will ensure that all model numbers are current and the accurate to the current standards (as the 
digital conversion will be complete by December of 2010). 
 
 
 











































AGENDA ITEM 4S 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 16, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 

Item Type: Consent  None 

Contact: Judy Thill, Fire Chief x Amount included in current budget 

Prepared by: Judy Thill Fire Chief  Budget amendment requested 

Reviewed by:   FTE included in current complement 

   New FTE requested – N/A 

   Other 

 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED 
 
 

Consider authorizing the Inver Grove Heights Fire Department to advertise for bids for a 
new fire truck. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
 

The IGHFD would like to purchase a small ladder truck and would like to advertise for 
bids.  This ladder truck will replace Engine 14 (E14), the oldest engine in our fleet and 
will also provide improved fire response to many areas of our City.  
 
The specification is near completion and the IGHFD would like to begin advertising, 
beginning on November 15, 2009 with bids to be opened on December 4, 2009. If a bid 
is acceptable to the IGHFD, a recommendation would then come back to the Inver 
Grove Heights City Council at the meeting on December 14, 2009.  
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
APPROVE 2010 MEETING SCHEDULE OF ADVISORY COMMISSIONS 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 
Item Type: Consent x None 
Contact: JTeppen, Asst City Admin  Amount included in current budget 
Prepared by:   Budget amendment requested 
Reviewed by:   FTE included in current complement 
   New FTE requested – N/A 
   Other 
 
 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED Accept the attached meeting schedules for 2010. 
 
SUMMARY Section 2-1-6 of the City Code specifies that each Commission and task force 
shall file a schedule of regular meetings with the City Clerk.    
 
Each of the City Council’s Advisory Commissions; Planning, Environmental, Parks and 
Recreation, and Aircraft Noise Abatement, and Convention and Visitors Bureau has submitted 
their schedules of regular meetings for 2010, and they are attached.   
 
Staff recommends the Council review and accept the attached schedule of meetings for 2010.  
These meeting dates and times will be kept on file with the City Clerk. 
 



Aircraft Noise Abatement Commission Meeting Schedule for 2010 
 
The Aircraft Noise Abatement Commission meets regularly on the first Wednesday 
falling at mid-quarter at 6:30 p.m. in the Administrative Conference Room at Inver Grove 
Heights City Hall, 8150 Barbara Avenue.   
 
Wednesday, February 3, 2010  6:30 p.m 
Wednesday, May 5, 2010   6:30 p.m. 
Wednesday, August 4, 2010   6:30 p.m. 
Wednesday, November 3, 2010  6:30 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 



Inver Grove Heights Convention & Visitors Bureau 
Meeting Schedule for 2010 

 
 
The Inver Grove Heights Convention & Visitors Bureau meets on the 4th 
Thursday of each month at 9:30 a.m. at the River Heights Chamber/ IGH CVB 
Office, located at 5782 Blackshire Path. 
 
Thursday, January 21, 2010*   9:30 a.m. 
Thursday, February 25, 2010   9:30 a.m. 
Thursday, March 25, 2010    9:30 a.m. 
Thursday, April 22, 2010    9:30 a.m. 
Thursday, May 27, 2010    9:30 a.m. 
Thursday, June 24, 2010    9:30 a.m. 
NO MEETING IN JULY 2010  
Thursday, August 26, 2010   9:30 a.m. 
Thursday, September 23, 2010   9:30 a.m. 
Thursday, October 28, 2010   9:30 a.m. 
Thursday, November 18, 2010*   9:30 a.m. 
Thursday, December 16, 2010*   9:30 a.m. 
 
* Date changed from regularly scheduled 4th Thursday of the month due to 
schedule conflicts or Holidays. 
 
Note: The IGH CVB reserves the right to cancel/reschedule/add “Special 
Meetings” throughout the year if needed for a quorum or special projects. 
 



ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2010 
 
The Environmental Commission meets regularly on the fourth Thursday of the 
month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers at Inver Grove Heights City 
Hall, 8150 Barbara Avenue.   

 
 

Thursday, January 28, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, February 25, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, March 25, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, April 22, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, May 27, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Thurday, June 24, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, July 22, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, August 26, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, September 23, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, October 28, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, November 18, 2010*    7:00 p.m. 

Thursday, December 16, 2010*    7:00 p.m. 

 

*  Normal meeting date changed due to holiday or conflicting event 

**The Planning Division reserves the right to cancel a meeting due to lack of  
   agenda items.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2010 
 
The Planning Commission meets regularly on the first and third Tuesdays of the 
month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers at Inver Grove Heights City 
Hall, 8150 Barbara Avenue.   

 
 

Tuesday, January 5, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, January 19, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, February 2, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, February 16, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, March 2, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, March 16, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, April 6, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, April 20, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, May 4, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, May 18, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, June 1, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, June 15, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, July 6, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, July 20, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Wednesday, August 4, 2010*    7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, August 17, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, September 7, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, September 21, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, October 5, 2010     7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, October 19, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Wednesday, November 3, 2010*    7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, November 16, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, December 7, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, December 21, 2010    7:00 p.m. 

 

*  Normal meeting date changed due to holiday or conflicting event 

**The Planning Division reserves the right to cancel a meeting due to lack of  
   agenda items.   
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2010 
 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission meets regularly on the first Wednesday of the 
month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers at Inver Grove Heights City Hall, 8150 Barbara 
Avenue.   
 
Wednesday, January 13, 2010      7:00 PM 
Wednesday, February 10, 2010      7:00 PM 
Wednesday, March 8, 2010 – Joint Mgt with PRAC\City Council  7:00 PM 
Wednesday, March 10, 2010       7:00 PM 
Wednesday, April 14, 2010        7:00 PM 
Wednesday, May 12, 2010       7:00 PM 
Wednesday, June 9, 2010       7:00 PM 
Wednesday, July 14, 2010       7:00 PM 
Wednesday, August 11, 2010      7:00 PM 
Wednesday, September 9, 2010      7:00 PM 
Wednesday, October 13, 2010      7:00 PM 
Wednesday, November 10, 2010      7:00 PM 
Wednesday, December 8, 2010      7:00 PM 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department reserves the right to cancel a meeting due to lack of 
agenda items.   
 



AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
SCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 
Item Type: Consent X None 
Contact: JTeppen  Asst. City Admin  Amount included in current budget 
Prepared by:   Budget amendment requested 
Reviewed by: n/a  FTE included in current complement 
   New FTE requested – N/A 
   Other 
 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED Schedule a Public Hearing on November 23, at 7:30 p.m. 
in the Council Chambers to consider the amendment of City Code Title 3, Chapter 4, Section 3-
4-2-2, 3-4-2-3 and Title 10, Chapter 3, Section 10-3-8  – Fees.  These are the fees associated 
with Water and Sanitary Sewer Utility Connections, and Storm Water Utility Connection Fees 
and Planning applications. 
 
SUMMARY Minnesota Statutes 462.353 directs that all changes to fees associated with 
municipal planning activities are required to be heard at a public hearing.  This includes not only 
the fees and charges for planning activities, but those associated with building permits and 
water and sewer connection charges.  While it is not explicitly required under State Statute yet, 
the City Attorney has advised staff that it would be prudent to put all fees associated with 
development activities into the City’s Code. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM ___________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 
SCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING – 2010 LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWALS 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009   Fiscal/FTE Impact: 

Item Type: Consent  x None 

Contact: 651.450.2513   Amount included in current budget 

Prepared by: Melissa Rheaume   Budget amendment requested 

Reviewed by: N/A   FTE included in current complement 

   New FTE requested – N/A 

   Other 

 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED: 

Schedule public hearing on December 14, 2009 at 7:30 p.m. to consider liquor license renewal 
applications for the 2010 calendar year. 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM ___________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 
SCHEDULE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009   Fiscal/FTE Impact: 

Item Type: Consent  x None 

Contact: 651.450.2513   Amount included in current budget 

Prepared by: Melissa Rheaume   Budget amendment requested 

Reviewed by: N/A   FTE included in current complement 

   New FTE requested – N/A 

   Other 

 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED: 

Schedule a special City Council meeting on November 16, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Administrative Conference room at City Hall for a 2010 Budget Review.   
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
CONSIDER 2010 PROPOSED CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU BUDGET 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 
Item Type: Consent X None 
Contact: Jenelle Teppen, Asst. City Admin.  Amount included in current budget 
Prepared by:   Budget amendment requested 
Reviewed by:   FTE included in current complement 
   New FTE requested – N/A 
   Other 
 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED Approve the budget for the Convention and Visitors Bureau for 2010. 
 
SUMMARY According to the resolution that established the Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB), the CVB 
must prepare and present to the City Council a budget for the following calendar year.  The City Council must 
approve the budget by December 31st for the upcoming year.  I have attached a copy of the proposed budget 
for 2010.  The 2010 budget is in the amount of $75,790.  No City tax dollars are involved in this budget. 
 
This proposed budget is decreased from 2009 by $24,070.  Lodging tax revenue is projected to decrease from 
previous years.  Expenses mirror revenues.   
 
The Inver Grove Heights Convention & Visitors Bureau (IGH CVB) has completed its eighth full year of 
operation.  As the general economy recovers, the tourism industry lags behind.  In Inver Grove Heights, 
lodging tax revenues for the year have been down compared to last year. 
 
A comprehensive marketing strategy was undertaken in 2007 using the services of Ensemble Creative and 
Marketing.  Cable television and online advertising and marketing will be continuing for next year under their 
suggestion and direction.   
 
Since 2006, Nicole Bengtson continues as Executive Director this year, providing support to the CVB on a 
salary basis. Nicole works on behalf of the IGH CVB with various tourism associations and CVB partnerships 
throughout the year. 
 
Since 2005, Inver Grove Heights has partnered with other communities in the south metro called Minneapolis 
South (currently including Burnsville, Eagan and Lakeville) to be able to market to a larger group of tourists and 
produce a vacation guide that is used as a response piece and marketing tool for our communities. This guide 
has also been available at the Travel Information Centers throughout the state, the Mall of America and in 
other information racks outside the metro.  In 2010, the IGH CVB will again partner with this group, producing a 
Vacation Minneapolis South Vacation Guide and continue work on marketing initiatives. 
 
According to the resolution establishing the CVB, the CVB is required to provide to the City Council by 
December 1st of each year, a written annual report detailing the previous year’s activities.  That report will be 
forthcoming. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff and the Board of Directors recommend approval of the budget for the Inver Grove Heights Convention 
and Visitors Bureau for 2010 in the amount of $75,790. 
 
 
 



Inver Grove Heights Convention and Visitors Bureau

10/22/2009
Actual 2007 Actual 2008 Adopted 2009 YTD Aug/Sept 2009 2010 Budget

Revenues
Lodging Tax Revenue 85,176 82,019 86,800 47,572 66,000
Penalty 270
Other Revenue
Investment Earnings 2,597 1,676 191 0
EMT Grant 2,738 11,606 10,000 4,892 9,790
Less Reserve -12,500 0
Carry Forward from Previous Year 15,560 0
TOTAL INCOME 90,512 95,301 99,860 52,925 75,790

Expenses
Administration
Salary & Related Expenses 14,850 17,958 19,110 14,333 19,110
Office Lease/Equip 2,400 2,621 3,000 1,834 3,000
Postage 440 1,336 1,800 19 900
Telephone 400 400 400 200 400
Stationery/Office Supplies 0 343 350 66 350
Travel (Mileage & Parking) 628 808 800 478 800
Professional Conferences/Meetings 443 284 500 18 500
Meals and Lodging 336 338 500 382 500
Total Administrative Expenses 19,497 24,088 26,460 17,329 25,560

Professional Memberships
MACVB 355 355 355 355 355
TCTAA 450 450 500 500 500
TMA 250 0 250 300 300
Explore MN Store (IGH Broch)- Move to Marketing in '09 430 425 0 0 0
Total Professional Membership Expenses 1,485 1,230 1,105 1,155 1,155

Page 1



Inver Grove Heights Convention and Visitors Bureau

Actual 2007 Actual 2008 Adopted 2009 YTD Aug/Sept 2009 2010 Budget
Marketing 
Web Hosting/Related 1,025 1,025 1,550 0 314
Explore Minnesota Tourism  Website CVB Package 0 275 275 275 275
Explore Minnesota Tourism Ads/Listings 225 100 200 0 0
Explore MN Store (IGH Brochure)- Move to Marketing in '09 0 0 450 0 0
Minneapolis South CVB Partnership- Ad Fulfillment* 12,000 10,000 12,500 12,500 12,500
Vacation Mpls South Guide Ad  (Ensemble Creative) 2,495 800 3,365 0 3,300
Marketing Campaign & Design Services (Ensemble Creative) 14,975 18,000 18,000 13,500 18,000
Printing & Binding (Ensemble Creative) 12,117 320 0
MN  Newspaper Association/FSI's (CVB portion of EMT Grant 7,491 17,312 18,000 0 0
Online/Print/Cable Advertising & Marketing Projects 0 0 6,105 0 14,686
Direct Mailer 0 6,580 7,000 0 0
Media/Cable TV/Video 1,356 1,000 0 0
Bowling Tournament 600 600 0
Photoghrapy 4,196 1,250 0 0
Events 2,482 2,000 0 0
Design Services 0 0 0 0
EMT Website Graphic Ad 300 900 0 0 0
EMT Minnesota Explorer (Star Tribune) 4,045 0 0 0 0
Arts & Custom Publishing 2,050 0 0 0 0
Billboard (Magic Media) 4,580 0 0 0 0
Lets Play Hockey (Inver Grove Heights Hockey Association) 600 0 0 0 0
Total Marketing Expenses 51,142 73,787 72,295 27,195 49,075

TOTAL EXPENSES 72,124 99,106 99,860 45,679 75,790

*Included in Minneapolis South CVB Coop

Page 2



AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
APPROVE FIRE RELIEF ASSOCIATION WORKSHEETS 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 
Item Type: Consent  x None 
Contact: JTeppen, Asst City Admin  Amount included in current budget 
Prepared by:   Budget amendment requested 
Reviewed by:   FTE included in current complement 
   New FTE requested – N/A 
   Other 
 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED Approve Fire Relief Association worksheets (attached). 
 
 
SUMMARY The Fire Relief Association must file the attached two worksheets with the State 
Auditor’s Office according to Minn. Statute 424A.02, subd. 3.  They must also be approved by 
the governing body of the City. 
 
 
 
 







  
 

AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 
PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 

Item Type: Consent  None 

Contact: Jenelle Teppen, Asst. City Admin X Amount included in current budget 

Prepared by: Amy Brinkman, H.R. Coordinator  Budget amendment requested 

Reviewed by: n/a  FTE included in current complement 

   New FTE requested – N/A 

   Other 

 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED Staff requests that the Council approve the personnel 
actions listed below: 
 
Please confirm the seasonal/temporary termination of:  Willard Trudeaux, Walter Knosp, 
Benjamin Oppitz and Dennis Hogan. 
 
Please confirm the termination of employment of:  Tim Birkholz, Community Service Officer. 
 











































AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
ASSESSMENT HEARING FOR 2009 NUISANCE ABATEMENT 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 
Item Type: Public Hearing  None 
Contact: JTeppen, Asst. City Admin  Amount included in current budget 
Prepared by:   Budget amendment requested 
Reviewed by:   FTE included in current complement 
   New FTE requested – N/A 
  X Other 
 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED Consider a resolution adopting the final assessment roll for 
2009 Nuisance Abatement. 
 
SUMMARY Various properties were noticed that their properties were out of compliance in a 
number of different aspects; long grass and weeds, refuse, etc.  The property owners were 
notified that they needed to bring their properties into compliance or that the City would abate 
the nuisance and that the costs would be assessed.   
 
The following parcels are proposed to be assessed:  
 
 

205100005000 $372.33 
207115721005 $205.60 
206405008001 $160.76 
208140302000 $387.81 
203655004105 $387.81 
207115721005 $1,217.08 

 
 
For a total assessment amount of $2,730.99 
 



CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS 
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ASSESSMENT FOR THE 2009 NUISANCE ABATEMENT 

PROGRAM 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  _______ 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant of proper notice duly given as required by law, the Council has met, heard 
and passed upon all objections to the proposed assessment for the improvements – 2009 
Nuisance Abatement which includes the following: 
 

Lawn mowing, tree trimming, brush removal, refuse removal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF INVER GROVE 
HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA THAT: 
 

1. Such proposed assessment, a copy of which is attached hereto and make a part 
hereof, is hereby accepted and shall constitute the special assessment against the 
lands herein, and each tract of land therein included is hereby found to be benefited 
by the proposed assessment levied against it. 

 
2. Such assessment shall be payable in equal installments extending over a period of 

three (3) years, the first of the installments to be payable on or before the first 
Monday in January 2009, and shall bear interest at the rate of eight percent (8%) per 
annum from the date of adoption of this assessment resolution.  To the first 
installment shall be added interest for one year on all installments. 

 
3. The owner of any property, so assessed, may at any time prior to certification of the 

assessment to the County Auditor, pay the whole of the assessment on such 
property with interest accrued to the date of payment, to the City Treasurer, except 
that no interest shall be charged if the entire assessment is paid within thirty days 
from the adoption of this resolution, and the owner may, at any time thereafter, pay 
to the County Treasurer the entire amount of the assessment remaining unpaid, with 
interest accrued to December 31 of the year in which such payment is made.  Such 
payment must be made before November 15, or interest will be charged through 
December 31 of the next succeeding year. 

 
4. The Clerk shall, forthwith, transmit a certified duplicate of this assessment to the 

County Auditor to be extended on the property tax lists of the County, and such 
assessments shall be collected and paid over the same manner as other municipal 
taxes. 

 
Adopted by the City Council of Inver Grove Heights this 9th day of November, 2009. 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
 
        _____________________________ 
        George Tourville, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Melissa Rheaume, Deputy Clerk 



























































AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
CONSIDER THE SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE NUMBER 
AND FREQUENCY OF GARAGE SALES 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 
Item Type: Regular x None 
Contact: JTeppen, Asst City Admin  Amount included in current budget 
Prepared by:   Budget amendment requested 
Reviewed by:   FTE included in current complement 
   New FTE requested – N/A 
   Other 
 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED Consider the second reading of an ordinance that 
regulates the number and frequency of garage sales. 
 
SUMMARY The City Council has asked that staff prepare an ordinance for their consideration 
that regulates the number and frequency of garage sales.  City Council reviewed the ordinances 
from a few of our surrounding communities and asked that specific language from those were 
incorporated into the attached draft. 
 
Following the first reading the only change made was to include a statement allowing four 
garage sales per calendar year not including any City sanctioned garage sale event. 
 
Attached to this is a memorandum from the City Attorney explaining the difference between a 
misdemeanor and petty misdemeanor. 
 
 
 
 
  



 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS 
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING CITY CODE CHAPTER 9 

REGULATING GARAGE SALES 
 
The City Council of Inver Grove Heights does hereby ordain: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDEMENT.  Section  5-9-2  of the 2008 City Code is hereby enacted as 
follows: 
 
Section 5-9-2 DEFINITIONS. The term “garage sale” shall mean and include all sales 
entitled “garage sale,” “lawn sale,” “boutique sale,” or any similar casual sale of tangible 
personal property which is advertised by any means whereby the public at large is or can be 
made aware of the sale. 
 
SECTION 2.  AMENDEMENT.  Section  5-9-4 of the 2008 City Code is hereby enacted as 
follows: 
 
SECTION 5-9-4  H. Garage Sales.  The regulation of garage sales is intended to prevent their 
frequency from becoming a nuisance.  Garage sales are allowed in all residential zoning 
districts with the following restrictions: 
 

a. There shall not be more than four sales events in each calendar year per dwelling unit.  
This number does not include the participation in any City sanctioned garage sale event. 

b. Sale events are limited to any consecutive 72 hour period. 
c. Garage sale signs must comply with the sign ordinance.  No directional signs or 

advertising signs with respect to garage sales shall be attached to utility poles, trees, or 
signposts.  All directional signs or advertising signs shall be freestanding.  Each such 
sign shall be promptly removed after garage sales by the person conducting the sales.  

d. Garage sale signs may be erected on private properties other than the property where 
the sale is conducted provided permission from the private property owner is obtained.   

e. Personal property offered for sale at garage sales shall be that of the owners/occupants 
of the property at which the garage sale is conducted.  Personal property of members of 
several families may be offered for sale at a garage sale at property owned or occupied 
by one of the participant families. 

f. No consignment personal property may be offered for sale at garage sales. 
g. Garage sales shall be conducted so as not to obstruct or interfere with pedestrian or 

vehicular traffic. 
 
 
 



 
 

 
TIMOTHY J. KUNTZ 
DANIEL J. BEESON 

*KENNETH J. ROHLF 
STEPHEN H. FOCHLER 

JAY P. KARLOVICH 
ANGELA M. LUTZ AMANN 

*KORINE L. LAND 
ANN C. O’REILLY 

*DONALD L. HOEFT 
DARCY M. ERICKSON 

DAVID S. KENDALL 
BRIDGET McCAULEY NASON 

DAVID B. GATES 
•                                          

 
 
 
 

MEMO 

HAROLD LEVANDER 
1910-1992 

• 
ARTHUR GILLEN 

1919-2005 
• 

• ROGER C. MILLER 
1924-2009 

 
*ALSO ADMITTED IN WISCONSIN 

ALSO ADMITTED IN NORTH DAKOTA 
ALSO ADMITTED IN MASSACHUSETTS 

ALSO ADMITTED IN OKLAHOMA 

 
  
 TO: Mayor and Councilmembers  
 FROM: Timothy J. Kuntz and Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorneys  
 DATE: November 5, 2009 
 RE: Misdemeanor and Petty Misdemeanor Code Violations 
 
 
Section 1.  Background.  With respect to the garage sales ordinance, the Council asked for 
background information regarding the difference between a petty misdemeanor and a 
misdemeanor.   
 
Section 2.  Discussion.  The City Council may designate the offense level for a violation of a 
City Code provision as either a misdemeanor or petty misdemeanor. A misdemeanor is a crime 
that is punishable by up to ninety (90) days in jail, a one thousand dollar ($1,000) fine, or both. A 
petty misdemeanor is not a crime. Rather it is a petty offense “which does not constitute a crime 
and for which a sentence of a fine of not more than $300 may be imposed.” MINN. STAT. § 
609.02, SUBD. 02 (2009). 
 
 Moreover, with a few exceptions,1 even if an offense is technically a misdemeanor, the 
prosecuting attorney has the authority to request that the Court certify the offense as a petty 
misdemeanor under MINN. R. CRIM. P. 23.04 and/or MINN. STAT. § 609.131, SUBD. 1 (2009). 
Additionally, if an offense is technically a misdemeanor, but the sentence imposed by the court is 
within the limits for a petty misdemeanor sentence, the conviction is deemed to be a petty 
misdemeanor. See MINN. R. CRIM. P. 23.02 (2009). 
 
 With one exception,2 all violations of the provisions of the Inver Grove Heights City 
Code are misdemeanors, and the City Code contains the following general language regarding 
violations of City Code provisions: 
                     
1 The RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE and relevant provisions of MINN. STAT. § 609.131(2009) offer conflicting 
requirements for the certification of a misdemeanor as a petty misdemeanor, with the Statute leaving the certification 
up to the prosecutor and the Court, and the Rule requiring consent from the Defendant for such certification.  
2 Currently, the Inver Grove Heights City Code contains one petty misdemeanor offense, which is the failure to 
properly dispose of dog feces. See Inver Grove Heights City Code Section 5-4-2-5, Excrement Removal Required. 
(2009). 

633 SOUTH CONCORD STREET • SUITE 400 •  SOUTH SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA  55075 • 651-451-1831 • FAX 651-450-7384 
OFFICE ALSO LOCATED IN SPOONER, WISCONSIN 



 
Misdemeanor Violation; Penalties: Any person who violates a provision 
of this code is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, may 
be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) 
and imprisonment for a term not to exceed ninety (90) days, or both. 
Each act of violation and every day on which a violation occurs or 
continues is a separate violation. (1974 Code § 115.01; amd. 2008 Code) 

 
Inver Grove Heights City Code Section 1-4-1 (2009). 
 

                                                                  
 

2 
 





















LAY
 A
V
E
 

C
L
A
Y
T
O
N
 A
V
E
 E

U
PPER 73RD ST 

75TH ST E

C
L
O
M
A
N
 W
A
Y

77TH ST E

T E

E
V
E
 A
V
E
 E

C
O
O
P

CLAY CT
C
L
E
A
D
I
S
 W
A
Y
 E

73R
D

 C
T
 E

C
O

N
R

O

Y TRL E

CONROY CT

Joyce Johnson Request - Case No. 09-35CV

Exhibit A - Zoning Map

Subject Site

MUSA Limits

Shoreland District: Transitional River Zone

Shoreland District: Urban River Zone

Shoreland & Critical Area Overland Districts

Sand & Gravel Overlay District

Agricultural Overlay (10 ac. min. lot till sewer avail.)

surfacewater

A, Agricultural

E-1, Estate (2.5 ac.)

E-2, Estate (1.75 ac.)

R-1A, Single Family (1.0 ac.)

R-1B, Single Family (0.5 ac.)

R-1C, Single Family (0.25 ac.)

R-2, Two-Family

R-3A, 3-4 Family

R-3B, up to 7 Family

R-3C, > 7 Family

R-4, Mobile Home Park

B-1, Limited Business

B-2, Neighborhood Business

B-3, General Business

B-4, Shopping Center

OP, Office Park

PUD, Planned Unit Development

OFFICE PUD

Comm PUD, Commercial PUD

MF PUD, Multiple-Family PUD

I-1, Limited Industrial

I-2, General Industrial

P, Public/Institutional

Surface Water

ROW

Number Lakes (e.g. 19-44)
are suject to
Shoreline Ordinance









































































































COMPREHENSIVE PLAN6-22 

6.  Parks and Recreation

Figure 6.8: 2030 Comprehensive Trail Map (The proposed trail alignments are conceptual.)

0 0.5 10.25

MilesI 2030 Comprehensive Trail Plan

Legend

Proposed Bituminous Trails

Concrete Sidewalks

Bituminous Sidewalks

Bituminous Trails

Natural Trails

Proposed Regional Trail

Public Park / Open Space

Private Open Space

Open Water / Wetland

Mississippi River Regional Trail (MRRT)

Planned MRRT (Dakota County)

Complete MRRT (Dakota County)

Dakota County 

North/South

Regional Trail

Search Corridor



IE =g9.^PFo"Eifr* Ee.E€8S,F96inqs'FtE

BEE€EA!95€.dt9t

:iiii*.

%n-
"4t

)

l, r r-1.

)o

hbotten
TextBox
Exhibit B

hbotten
Callout
Trail segments under consideration



















































2003-15 Rock Obstructions









AGENDA ITEM ____________ 
 
 
CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS    REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
CONSIDER FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE 3, 
CHAPTER 4, SECTIONS 3-4-2-2 and 3-4-2-3 and TITLE 10, CHAPTER 3, SECTION 10-3-8 
ADJUSTING DEVELOPMENT FEES FOR 2010 
 
Meeting Date: November 9, 2009  Fiscal/FTE Impact: 
Item Type: Regular x None 
Contact: Jenelle Teppen, Asst. City Admin.  Amount included in current budget 
Prepared by:   Budget amendment requested 
Reviewed by:   FTE included in current complement 
   New FTE requested – N/A 
   Other 
 
PURPOSE/ACTION REQUESTED The Council is asked to consider the first reading of an 
ordinance to amend the City Code to adjust the fees and charges associated with development 
activities.  This includes water and sanitary sewer connection fees, and fees associated with 
planning activities (such as rezoning, variance, conditional use permits, etc.). 
 
SUMMARY Minnesota State Statues 462.353 sets forth the requirements with respect to a 
municipality’s authority to prescribe fees associated with planning activities.   
 
While Statute 462 does not speak to building permit fees or water or sanitary sewer connection 
fees, the City Attorney’s advice is to set forth the fees in the Code given the scope of 
development that is anticipated to take place over the next several years in the northwest area. 
 
Two requirements found in 462 are that new fees must be adopted by January 1st for them to be 
in effect for the following year, and a public hearing must be held regarding the proposed fees.  
The public hearing has been set for November 24th.  
 
Staff proposes changes to the fees that address water and sanitary sewer connection fees, etc., 
and one change to the fees associated with planning activities.  The water and sewer 
connection fees are proposed to increase between 3.5% and 4.5%.  These proposed fees are 
based on financial projections supplied by Ehlers and Associates.  The change to the planning 
fees is to add a fee for recording with the County.  We currently play a $46 abstract fee to the 
County and propose to pass that cost on to the applicant.  
 
The proposed changes are outlined on the attached.   
 



CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS 
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 4, SECTIONS 3-4-2-2 and 3-4-2-3 and 
TITLE 10, CHAPTER 3, SECTION 10-3-8, OF THE INVER GROVE HEIGHTS CITY CODE 

RELATING TO FEES 
 
 The City Council of Inver Grove Heights does hereby ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Amendment.  IGH City Code Chapter 4, Section 3-4-2-2 is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
Water and Sanitary Sewer and Storm Water System Connection Fees. The connection fees for 
the water utility system and the sanitary sewer utility system and the storm water sewer utility 
system.  Those fees are as follows: 
 
Connection Fees for Water Utility System for Land Outside the Northwest Area. 
 
Water Plat Connection 
Fee 

$950 $985 multiplied by a density factor of 3.5 multiplied by Gross 
Acres 

 
Water Building Permit Connection Unit Fee $649 $665 per SAC Unit 
Water Treatment Plant Fee $560 $580 per SAC Unit 
 

Water Core Connection Fee (based on water service 
size) 
1 inch $1,325 $1,370 
1 ½ inch $2,975 $3,080 
2 inch $5,285 $5,470 
3 inch $11,880 $12,295 
4 inch  $21,130 $21,870 
6 inch (or larger) $49,540 $51,275 

 
Connection Fees for Sanitary Sewer Utility System for Land Outside the Northwest Area. 
 

Sanitary Sewer Plat 
Connection Fee 

$950 $985 multiplied by a density factor of 3.5 multiplied by Gross 
Acres 

 
MCES SAC Unit Fee $2,000 $2,100 per SAC Unit 
Sanitary Sewer Building Permit Connection  $335 $350 per SAC Unit 
B-Line Special Connection Charge $895 $925 per SAC Unit (applicable only to B-

Line Area) 
 
Sewer Core Connection Fee (based on building sewer service size) 

4 inch $430 $445 
6 inch $725 $750 
8 inch $1,285 $1,325 
10 inch $2,010 $2,070 
12 inch  $2,890 $2,980 

 
  



 
Connection Fees for Water Utility System for Northwest Area. 
Fees Payable at Time of Plat (Northwest Area) 
 
Water Plat Connection Fee 
In the R-1 and R-2 Zoning Districts $800 $835 
In the R-3A Zoning District $800 $835  
In the R-3B Zoning District $800 $835 
In the R-3C Zoning District $800 $835  
In the B-1 and Office Park Zoning Districts $800 $835 
In the B-2, B-3 and B-4 Zoning Districts $800 $835 
In the I-1 and I-2 and Industrial - Office Park 
Zoning Districts 

 
$800 $835 

In the P-Institutional Zoning Districts $800 $835 
 
Fees Payable at Time of Building Permit (Northwest Area) 
 
Water Building Permit Connection Unit Fee $2,215 $2,315 per SAC Unit 
Water Treatment Plant Fee $560 $580 per SAC Unit 
 
Water Core Connection Fee (based on water service size) 

1 inch $1,325 $1,380 
1 ½ inch $2,975 $3,095 
2 inch $5,285 $5,495 
3 inch $11,880 $12,355 
4 inch $21,130 $21,975 
6 inch (or larger) $49,540 $51,520 

 
Connection Fees for Sanitary Sewer Utility System for Northwest Area 
Fees Payable at Time of Plat(Northwest Area) 
 
Sanitary Sewer Plat Connection Fee 
In the R-1 and R-2 Zoning Districts $1,225 $1,335 
In the R-3A Zoning District $1,225 $1,335 
In the R-3B Zoning District $1,225 $1,335 
In the R-3C Zoning District $1,225 $1,335 
In the B-1 and Office Park Zoning Districts $1,225 $1,335 
In the B-2, B-3 and B-4 Zoning Districts $1,225 $1,335 
In the I-1 and I-2 and Industrial - Office Park 
Zoning Districts 

  
$1,225 $1,335 

In the P-Institutional Zoning Districts $1,225 $1,335 
 
Fees Payable at Time of Building Permit (Northwest Area) 
 
MCES SAC Unit Fee $2,000 $2,100 per SAC Unit 
Sanitary Sewer Building Permit Connection  $3,380 $3,690 per SAC Unit 
 
Sewer Core Connection Fee (based on building sewer service size) 

4 inch $430 $450 
6 inch $725 $755 
8 inch $1,285 $1,335 
10 inch $2,010 $2,090 
12 inch  $2,890 $3,005 



Connection Fees for Storm Water Sewer Utility System for Northwest Area 
 
Storm Water Plat Connection Fee 
Fees Payable at Time of Plat(Northwest Area) 
 
In the R-1, R-2 and R-3A Zoning Districts $8,520 $8,945 
In the R-3B and R-3C Zoning District $8,720 $9,155 
In the B-1 and Office Park Zoning District $9,780 $10,270 
In the B-2, B-3 and B-4 Zoning Districts $9,515 $9,990 
In the I-1, I-2 and I-Office Park Zoning Districts $9,250 $9,715 
In the P-Institutional Zoning Districts $8,720 $9,155 
In the Mixed Use-Residential Zoning Districts $8,720 $9,155 
In the Mixed Use-Commercial Zoning Districts $9,250 $9,715 
 
Section 2. Amendment.  IGH City Code Section 1010.04 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Sanitary Sewer and Water Trunk Assessments. 
 
$3,325 $3,440 per acre for water trunk line area benefit 
$3,325 $3,440 per acre for sanitary sewer trunk line area benefit 



Section 3. Amendment.  IGH City Code Section 515.40, Subd. 9 is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 
 
TYPE OF LAND USE APPROVAL BASE FEE GIS FEE ESCROW 
Conditional Use Permit, single family 
residential 

 
$250 

 
 

 
$0 

Conditional Use Permit, other $500  $1,250 
Conditional Use Permit, other – 
amendment 

 
$150 

  
$500 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment $500 $50 $2,500 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - minor $200  $250 
Zoning Code Amendment $500  $500 
Zoning Code Amendment – minor $100  $250 
Rezoning $500 $50 $0 
Variance - Residential $200  $0 
Variance - Commercial $200   
Planned Unit Development $1,000 + plat fees  $5,000 
Planned Unit Development Amendment $250  $1,000 
Determination of Substantially Similar Use $200  $200 
Major Site Plan Review $500  $1,500 
Preliminary Plat $250/+ $5 per lot  $3,000 
Final Plat – single family $350 $25/lot $500 
Final Plat - other $200 $100/acre $3,000 
Waiver of Plat $300 $25  
Administrative Subdivision $100 $25/lot  
Street Easement Vacation $150 $50  
Street Dedication $150 $50  
Wetland Conservation Act Certification $75   
Wetland Replacement Plan $200 $100/acre $2,500 
Northwest Area Sketch Plan Review   $1,000 
Northwest Area Environmental Studies 
Fee 

$80/gross acre   

Abstract Fee $46   
 
Section 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and publication according to law. 
 
Passed this 14th day of December, 2009. 
 
 
            
     George Tourville, Mayor 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Melissa Rheaume, Deputy Clerk 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda.pdf
	Item 4A - Minutes
	Item 4B - Disbursements
	Disbursements 110909.pdf
	Resolution 110909.pdf
	Disbursement Listing 110909.pdf

	Item 4C - Final Pay Voucher for National Guard Gymnasium Floor Replacement
	Item 4D - Pay Voucher 2 for Bohrer Pond_2008-22
	Item 4E - Pay Voucher 3 for Clark Road _2007-17
	Item 4F - Pay Voucher 3 for Salem Hills Farm_2008-09F
	Item 4G - Pay Voucher No 5
	Item 4H - Agreement with MnDOT and UPR
	Item 4I - Amend No 1 for School Safety Study
	Item 4J - Sale of Unclaimed Property to NPO
	Item 4K - Approve Funding Source for Salem Hils Trail
	Item 4L -  Disc Golf Course Hole Re-Alignment
	Item 4M - Vehicle Use Policy
	Item 4N - MSP Grant Resolution
	Item 4O - RMG Donation
	Item 4P - Roofing Inspection Proposal
	Item 4Q - Authorize RFP for Tech Package
	Item 4R - Amend Concord Hills Development Agreement
	Item 4S - Advertise Fire Truck Bids
	Item 4T  - Comm Schedules 2010
	comm schedules 2010.pdf
	anac 10
	IGH CVB 2010 Meeting Dates
	2010 Environmental Commission Meeting Schedule (2)
	2010 Planning Commission Meeting Schedule
	2010 PRAC schedule

	Item 4U - Sched Pub Hrg Fees
	Item 4V - Schedule Pub Hrg Liq Lic Renewals
	Item 4W - Sched Special Council Meeting
	Item 4X - 2010 CVB Budget
	2010 proposed budget summary.pdf
	CVB 2010 Proposed Budget
	Sheet1


	Item 4Y - Relief Assoc Worksheets
	relief assoc worksheets.pdf
	front1535_000

	Item 4Z - Personnel Action
	Item 6A - Kladek License Violation
	Item 6B - Nuisance Abatement Assessment Hrg
	Item 7A - Dakota Electric Association Electric Franchise Ordinance
	Item 7B - Xcel Energy Electric and Gas Franchise Ordinances
	Item 7C - Alcohol Server Training Ordinance
	Item 7D - 2nd Reading Garage Sales
	garage sales 2nd read.pdf
	Memo re Misdemeanor and Petty Misdemeanor City Code Violations - 11-9-09 Council Meeting

	Item 7E - Joyce Johnson CUP
	front1530_000
	Zoning Map
	front1531_000

	Item 7F - Nonconformities Code Amendment
	Item 7G - Trail PLan
	front1533_000
	2030 trail map
	trail segments highlighed
	back1350_000

	Item 7H - Renewal of Advertising Bench Permits
	Item 7I - Utility Rates for 2010
	Item 7J - Change Order and Pay Voucher for NWA _2003-15
	Item 7K - Addendum No 5 - Northwest Area_2003-15
	Item 7L - 1st Reading Fee Ord Amend

